



# COMISIÓN DE MEDIDAS FITOSANITARIAS

**14.<sup>a</sup> reunión**

**Roma, 1-5 de abril de 2019**

**Aprobación de normas internacionales para medidas fitosanitarias –  
Enmiendas a tinta a NIMF aprobadas: “contaminación” y sus derivados**

**Tema 10.2 del programa**

**Preparado por la Secretaría de la CIPF**

## I. Introducción

1. En mayo de 2017, el Comité de Normas (CN) añadió “contaminación” (examen de la coherencia de su uso en las NIMF) (2017-002) a la lista de temas de las normas de la Convención Internacional de Protección Fitosanitaria (CIPF), debido a la posibilidad de que existieran algunos casos en las normas aprobadas (por ejemplo, la NIMF 18 [*Directrices para utilizar la irradiación como medida fitosanitaria*]) en los que “contaminación” se usara con un significado diferente del que se le da en el *Glosario de términos fitosanitarios*.
2. En su reunión de diciembre de 2017, el Grupo técnico sobre el glosario (GTG) examinó el uso de “contaminación” y sus derivados en las NIMF y propuso las enmiendas a tinta que se exponen a continuación, a fin de velar por un uso coherente de este término del *Glosario* y sus derivados sin modificar el significado deseado de los textos de las NIMF.
3. En mayo de 2018, el CN *examinó y aprobó* las enmiendas a tinta propuestas por el GTG, a fin de velar por un uso coherente de “contaminación” y sus derivados en las NIMF aprobadas.
4. Las enmiendas a tinta se presentan en el documento adjunto 1 (*versión inglesa únicamente*) del presente documento, en el que se aclaran los antecedentes y la justificación de cada propuesta específica.

*Es posible acceder a este documento utilizando el código de respuesta rápida impreso en esta página. Esta es una iniciativa de la FAO para minimizar su impacto ambiental y promover comunicaciones más verdes. Pueden consultarse más documentos en el sitio [www.fao.org](http://www.fao.org).*



## II. Decisiones

5. Se invita a la CMF a:
- 1) *tomar nota* de las enmiendas a tinta relativas al uso de “contaminación” a fin de velar por su uso coherente en todas las NIMF aprobadas (documento adjunto 1 de la versión inglesa únicamente);
  - 2) *tomar nota* de que las enmiendas a tinta se traducirán a los idiomas oficiales de la FAO y se aplicarán en las versiones lingüísticas de las normas pertinentes según lo permitan los recursos;
  - 3) *acordar* que, una vez que la Secretaría haya aplicado las enmiendas a tinta, las versiones anteriores de las normas serán revocadas y sustituidas por las nuevas versiones.

### Attachment 01: Ink amendments to ensure a consistent use of “contamination” and its derivatives in adopted ISPMs (*English only*)

Table 1: Ink amendments to avoid using “contamination” or its derivatives where the intended meaning does not correspond to the Glossary definition of “contamination”

ISPM	ISPM SECTION	CURRENT TEXT	PROPOSED INK AMENDMENT	EXPLANATION
ISPM 11 ( <i>Pest risk analysis for quarantine pests</i> )	1.1 Initiation points	S2 The types of LMOs that an NPPO may be asked to assess for phytosanitary risk include: - plants for use (a) as agricultural crops, for food and feed, ornamental plants or managed forests; (b) in bioremediation (as an organism that cleans up contamination) [...]	S2 The types of LMOs that an NPPO may be asked to assess for phytosanitary risk include: - plants for use (a) as agricultural crops, for food and feed, ornamental plants or managed forests; (b) in bioremediation (as an organism that cleans up <del>contamination</del> <u>pollution</u> ) [...]	“Contamination” is not used according to its Glossary definition. Bioremediation is a waste management technique that involves the use of organisms to neutralize pollutants from a contaminated site. According to EPA (USA), bioremediation is a "treatment that uses naturally occurring organisms to break down hazardous substances into less toxic or non-toxic substances". Therefore, the suggested ink amendment is to replace the term “contamination” by the word “pollution”.
ISPM 18 ( <i>Guidelines for the use of irradiation as a phytosanitary measure</i> )	ANNEX 2 Criteria 3. Product handling, storage and segregation	Commodities are handled in an environment that does not increase the risk of contamination from physical, chemical or biological hazards	Commodities are handled in an environment that does not increase the risk <del>of</del> <del>contamination</del> from physical, chemical or biological hazards	“Contamination” is not used according to its Glossary definition. The suggested ink amendment is to avoid using “contamination”.
ISPM 21 ( <i>Pest risk analysis for regulated non-quarantine pests</i> )	3.3.1 Pest effects	In some cases, economic consequences may only become apparent after a long period of time (e.g. a degenerative disease in a perennial crop, a pest with a long-lived resting stage). Furthermore, the infestation in the plants may result in contamination of places of production with a consequential impact on future crops. [...]	In some cases, economic consequences may only become apparent after a long period of time (e.g. a degenerative disease in a perennial crop, a pest with a long-lived resting stage). Furthermore, the infestation in the plants may result in <del>the contamination of</del> <u>the pest remaining in</u> places of production with a consequential impact on future crops. [...]	“Contamination” is not considered to be used strictly according to its Glossary definition, in which “places of production” are not listed. Rewording is suggested to avoid using “contamination”.
ISPM 33 ( <i>Pest free potato</i> (Solanum))	3.1 Establishment of pest free potato	[...] In addition to the laboratory testing procedure for regulated pests described below, potato	[...] In addition to the laboratory testing procedure for regulated pests described below, potato micropropagative material	“Contamination” is not used according to its Glossary definition.

ISPM	ISPM SECTION	CURRENT TEXT	PROPOSED INK AMENDMENT	EXPLANATION
<i>spp.) micropropagative material and minitubers for international trade)</i>	micropropagative material	micropropagative material should be inspected and found free from other pests or their symptoms and general microbial contamination.	should be inspected and found free from other pests or their symptoms and <del>from</del> <u>microbes in</u> general <del>microbial contamination</del> .	Rewording is suggested to avoid using "contamination".
ISPM 36 ( <i>Integrated measures for plants for planting</i> )	APPENDIX 1 Table 1	6 Pests spread by water - Use of uncontaminated water sources, free of pests	6 Pests spread by water - Use of <del>uncontaminated</del> water sources, free of pests	"Uncontaminated" is not considered to be used strictly according to the Glossary definition of "contamination", in which "water sources" are not listed. Furthermore, the word is redundant. Rewording is suggested to avoid using "uncontaminated".

Table 2: Ink amendments to ISPM 2 (*Framework for pest risk analysis*) where the term “contamination” is used in relation to biological control agents or beneficial organisms, but the use of “contaminants” is more appropriate

ISPM	ISPM SECTION	CURRENT TEXT	PROPOSED INK AMENDMENT	EXPLANATION
ISPM 2 ( <i>Framework for pest risk analysis</i> )	1.2.2 Biological control agents and other beneficial organisms	<p>Biological control agents and other beneficial organisms are intended to be beneficial to plants. Thus, when performing a PRA, the main concern is to look for potential injury to non-target organisms. Other concerns may include:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>- contamination of cultures of beneficial organisms with other species, the culture thereby acting as a pathway for pests</li> </ul>	<p>Biological control agents and other beneficial organisms are intended to be beneficial to plants. Thus, when performing a PRA, the main concern is to look for potential injury to non-target organisms. Other concerns may include:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>- <del>contamination</del> <u>presence of other species as contaminants of</u> cultures of beneficial organisms <del>with other species</del>, the culture thereby acting as a pathway for pests.</li> </ul>	<p>“Contamination” is not used according to its Glossary definition.</p> <p>The wording proposed instead uses “contaminants” because it is a word commonly used in this context and well understood. This is also in line with the note on “contaminant” in the <i>General recommendation in the use of terms in ISPMs</i> (as proposed by the TPG in their December 2017 meeting).</p>

Table 3: Ink amendments to adopted ISPMs where “contaminant” is used but the Glossary terms “contamination” or “contaminating pest” should be used instead

ISPM	ISPM SECTION	CURRENT TEXT	PROPOSED INK AMENDMENT	EXPLANATION
ISPM 2 ( <i>Framework for pest risk analysis</i> )	1.2.1 Plants as pests	Plants as pests may also be introduced unintentionally into a country, for example as contaminants of seeds for sowing, grain for consumption or fodder, wool, soil, machinery, equipment, vehicles, containers or ballast water.	Plants as pests may also be introduced unintentionally into a country, for example as <del>contaminants of</del> <b>contaminating pests with</b> seeds for sowing, grain for consumption or fodder, wool, soil, machinery, equipment, vehicles, containers or ballast water.	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term “contaminating pest”.
ISPM 11 ( <i>Pest risk analysis for quarantine pests</i> )	ANNEX 4 Introduction	This annex provides specific guidance on conducting PRA to determine if a plant is a pest of ..... It focuses primarily on plants proposed for import, whether as plants for planting or for other intended uses. It does not cover the unintentional introduction of plants as contaminants in commodities or conveyances.	This annex provides specific guidance on conducting PRA to determine if a plant is a pest of... It focuses primarily on plants proposed for import, whether as plants for planting or for other intended uses. It does not cover the unintentional introduction of plants as <del>contaminants</del> <b>contaminating pests</b> in commodities or conveyances.	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term “contaminating pest”.
ISPM 11	ANNEX 4 <i>Probability of spread (refer to section 2.2.3)</i>	The likelihood and extent of spread depends on natural and human-mediated factors. [...] Human-mediated factors, whether intentional or unintentional, may include: - intended use, consumer demand, economic value and ease of transport - the movement of propagules as a contaminant of soil or other materials (e.g. clothing, conveyances, machinery, tools, equipment)	The likelihood and extent of spread depends on natural and human-mediated factors. [...] Human-mediated factors, whether intentional or unintentional, may include: - intended use, consumer demand, economic value and ease of transport - the movement of propagules <b>of contaminating pests as a contaminant of</b> <del>with</del> soil or other materials (e.g. clothing, conveyances, machinery, tools, equipment)	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term “contaminating pest”.
ISPM 14 ( <i>The use of integrated measures in a systems</i> )	3. Relationship with PRA and Available Risk	<b>Harvest</b> - sanitation (e.g. removal of contaminants, “trash”)	<b>Harvest</b> - sanitation (e.g. removal of <b>contamination</b> <del>contaminants</del> , “trash”)	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term “contamination”.

ISPM	ISPM SECTION	CURRENT TEXT	PROPOSED INK AMENDMENT	EXPLANATION
<i>approach for pest risk management)</i>	Management Options			
ISPM 20 ( <i>Guidelines for a phytosanitary import regulatory system</i> )	5.1.6.2 Emergency action	Emergency action may be required in a new or unexpected phytosanitary situation, such as the detection of quarantine pests or potential quarantine pests:  - as contaminants of conveyances, storage places or other places involved with imported commodities.	Emergency action may be required in a new or unexpected phytosanitary situation, such as the detection of quarantine pests or potential quarantine pests:  - as <del>contaminants</del> <u>contaminating pests</u> of conveyances, storage places or other places involved with imported commodities.	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term “contaminating pest”.
ISPM 23 ( <i>Guidelines for inspection</i> )	2.3.2 Compliance of phytosanitary requirements	Inspection can be used to verify the compliance with some phytosanitary requirements. Examples include:  freedom from contaminants (e.g. leaves, soil)	Inspection can be used to verify the compliance with some phytosanitary requirements. Examples include:  - freedom from <del>contaminants</del> <u>contamination</u> (e.g. leaves, soil)	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term “contamination”.
ISPM 33 ( <i>Pest free potato (Solanum spp.) micropropagative material and minitubers for international trade</i> )	Annex 2 Operating procedures	- a monitoring programme to check the level of air-borne contaminants in the subculture room, cabinets and growth room	- a monitoring programme to check the level of air-borne <del>contaminants</del> <u>contamination</u> in the subculture room, cabinets and growth room	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term “contamination”.
ISPM 41 ( <i>International movement of used vehicles, machinery and equipment</i> )	Appendix 2 <b>Category:</b> Agricultural, forestry and horticultural used VME, such as:	<b>Contamination notes:</b>  Contaminants: soil, pests.	<b>Contamination notes:</b>  <del>Contaminants</del> <u>Contamination by:</u> soil, pests	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term “contamination”.

ISPM	ISPM SECTION	CURRENT TEXT	PROPOSED INK AMENDMENT	EXPLANATION
ISPM 41	Appendix 2 <b>Category:</b> Earth moving used VME, such as: - bulldozers - graders - surface mining equipment. Reconditioned or field-tested used VME are included. Pest risk is variable, but high levels of contamination may occur in this category	<b>Contamination notes:</b>  Soil is the main contaminant; pests, plant debris and seeds can also be contaminants	<b>Contamination notes:</b>  <del>Soil is the main contaminant;</del> <u>Contamination mainly by soil; but also by</u> pests, plant debris and seeds <del>can also be contaminants</del>	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term "contamination".
ISPM 41	Appendix 2 <b>Category:</b> Used military VME, such as:	<b>Contamination notes:</b>  Contaminants: soil, pests [...]	<b>Contamination notes:</b>  <del>Contaminants</del> <u>Contamination by:</u> soil, pests [...]	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term "contamination".
ISPM 41	Appendix 2 <b>Category:</b> Waste management used VME, such as:	<b>Contamination notes:</b>  Organic waste debris is the main contaminant, including: soil, pests [...]	<b>Contamination notes:</b>  <u>Contamination mainly by o</u> rganic waste debris <del>is the main contaminant</del> , including: soil, pests [...]	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term "contamination".
ISPM 41	Appendix 2 <b>Category:</b>	The most likely contaminants are soil and to a lesser extent pests. Pest risk is generally low unless used VME are contaminated with surface soil [...]	<del>The Contamination is</del> most likely <del>contaminants are by</del> soil and to a lesser extent <u>by</u> pests. Pest risk is generally low	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term "contamination".

ISPM	ISPM SECTION	CURRENT TEXT	PROPOSED INK AMENDMENT	EXPLANATION
	Deep mining used VME.		unless used VME are contaminated with surface soil [...]	
ISPM 41	Appendix 2 <b>Category:</b> Used vehicles, such as: - cars, vans, trucks, buses	<b>Contamination notes:</b> Contaminants: soil, pests [...]	<b>Contamination notes:</b> <del>Contaminants</del> <b>Contamination by:</b> soil, pests [...]	The meaning corresponds to that of the Glossary term "contamination".